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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

ACHTE/NEUNTE BOLL KINO
BETEILIGUNGS GMBH & CO KG
Plaintiff,
V.
CA. 1:10-cv-00453-RMC
DOES 1-2,094

Defendant.

N N N N N N N N N N N

AMICI CURIAE THE ELECTRONIC FRONTIER FOUNDATION, PUBLIC CITIZEN,
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION FOUNDATION AND AMERICAN CIVIL
LIBERTIES UNION OF THE NATION’S CAPITAL’S REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL

NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO FILE AS AMICI CURIAE IN SUPPORT OF
THIRD PARTY TIME WARNER CABLE’S MOTION TO QUASH OR MODIFY
SUBPOENA

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Evidence 201 and the authorities cited below, the Electronic
Frontier Foundation, Public Citizen, American Civil Liberties Union Foundation and the
American Civil Liberties Union of the Nation’s Capital (collectively, “Amici’) hereby request
that this Court take judicial notice of the following materials:

*  General Order, In re cases filed by Recording Companies, filed in Fonovisa, Inc. et al.
v. Does 1-41 (No. A-04-CA-550 LY), Atlantic Recording Corporation, et al. v. Does I-
151 (No. A-04-CA-636 SS), Elektra Entertainment Group, Inc. et al. v. Does 1-11 (No.
A-04-CA-703 LY); and UMG Recordings, Inc., et al. v. Does 1-51 (No. A-04-CA-704
LY) (W.D. Tex. Nov. 17, 2004), available at
http://www.txwd.uscourts.gov/rules/stdord/Austin/recording_111704.pdf and attached
hereto as Exhibit A;

*  Twentieth Century Fox Film Corp., et al., v. Does 1-12, No. C-04-04862 (N.D. Cal
Nov. 16, 2004, appending In the Matter of DIRECTV, INC., Cases pending in the
Northern District of California, Case No. C-02-5912-JW (July 26, 2004), attached

hereto as Exhibit B;
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*  Elektra Entm’t Group, Inc., et al. v. Does 1-6, No. 04-1241 (E.D. Pa. Oct. 13, 2004),
attached hereto as Exhibit C;

* In Re: Copyright Infringement Cases With Doe Defendants Related to Civil Action
Number 04-1239, Case No. 04-CV-650-CN, Dkt 17 (E.D. Pa. January 21, 2005),
attached hereto as Exhibit D;

This request is made in connection with Amici’s Motion to File As Amici Curiae In
Support Of Third Party Time Warner Cable’s Motion To Quash Or Modify the Subpoena issued
in the above-captioned matter.

A district court may take judicial notice of facts that are “not subject to reasonable
dispute in that [they are] either (1) generally known within the territorial jurisdiction of the trial
court or (2) capable of accurate and ready determination by resort to sources whose accuracy
cannot reasonably be questioned.” Fed. R. Evid. 201(b); see also In re Merck & Co. Sec. Litig.,
432 F.3d 261, 264 n.3 (3d Cir. 2005) (“We can take judicial notice of Merck’s stock prices even
on a motion to dismiss because these facts are ‘not subject to reasonable dispute [and are]
capable of accurate and ready determination by resort to a source whose accuracy cannot be
reasonably questioned.’”) (quoting leradi v. Mylan Lab. Inc., 230 F.3d 594, 600 n.3 (3d Cir.
2000)). Furthermore, the Federal Rules of Evidence require a court to take judicial notice of a
matter “if requested by a party and supplied with the necessary information.” Fed. R. Evid.
201(d); see also In re Ravisent Technologies, Inc. Sec. Litig., No. 00-CV-1014, 2004 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 13255, at * 2 (E.D. Pa. July 12, 2004).

Exhibits A-D are all Orders from United States Federal District Courts. It is well
established that a court may take judicial notice of matters of public record. Pension Benefit
Guar. Corp., 998 F.2d 1192, 1197 (3d Cir. 1993); Berg v. United Steelworkers of Am., Local
3733, No. 98-308, 1998 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 4518, at **19-20 (E.D. Pa. April 8, 1998) (citing SA
Charles Alan Wright & Arthur R. Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure, Civil 2d § 1357 (1990)
(“matters of public record . . . may also be taken into account”)); Oshiver v. Levin, Fishbein,

Sedran & Berman, 38 F.3d 1380, 1384 n.2 (E.D. Pa. 1994). Specifically, federal courts may take
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judicial notice of proceedings in other courts, both within and outside of the federal judicial
system, if those proceedings have a direct relation to matters at issue. Allen v. City of Los
Angeles, 92 F.3d 842 (9th Cir. 1992).

These documents are offered to show how courts around the nation have handled issues
of jurisdiction, joinder and free speech rights in analogous cases. Thus, they are appropriate
subject for judicial notice pursuant to Federal Rule of Evidence 201(b)(2).

For the foregoing reasons, the Court may properly consider Exhibits A-D as it reviews

Amici’s Motion to File, and, should the Motion be granted, the Memorandum.

Dated: June 2, 2010 Respectfully submitted,

s/Corynne McSherry

Corynne McSherry (CA Bar No. 221504)
corynne@eff.org

Jennifer Granick

Jennifer@eff.org

ELECTRONIC FRONTIER FOUNDATION
454 Shotwell Street

San Francisco, CA 94110

T: (415) 436-9333

F: (415) 436-9993

www.eff.org

Attorney for Amicus
ELECTRONIC FRONTIER FOUNDATION

s/Marcia Hofmann

Marcia Hofmann (D.C. Bar No. 484136)
marcia@eff.org

ELECTRONIC FRONTIER FOUNDATION
454 Shotwell Street

San Francisco, CA 94110

T: (415) 436-9333

F: (415) 436-9993

www.eff.org

Attorney for Amicus
ELECTRONIC FRONTIER FOUNDATION
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Paul Alan Levy

pleavy@citizen.org

PUBLIC CITIZEN LITIGATION GROUP
1600 - 20th Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20009

T: (202) 588-1000
http://www.citizen.org/litigation

Attorney for Amicus:
PUBLIC CITIZEN

Arthur B. Spitzer (D.C. Bar No. 235960)
artspitzer@aol.com

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION OF
THE NATION’S CAPITAL

1400 20th Street, N.W., Suite 119
Washington, D.C. 20036

T. 202-457-0800

F. 202-452-1868D

www.aclu-nca.org

Attorney for Amicus:
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION OF
THE NATION’S CAPITAL

Aden J. Fine (D.C. Bar No. 485703)
afine@aclu.org

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION
FOUNDATION

125 Broad Street, 18th Floor

New York, NY 10004

T: (212) 549-2500

F: (212) 549-2651

www.aclu.org

Attorney for Amicus:
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION
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EXHIBIT A
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_FILED
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT '° 7'M N'VIsion
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAf K0 |7 Py 1: 30

AUSTIN DIVISION .
' WESTENN DISTRICTOF 71 x 4

§ el £S OFFcE XAS
. : v €A% _

§ GENERAL ORDER DEPUTY
CASES FILED BY §
RECORDING COMPANIES §

ORDER

A consortium of recording companies have filed several recent lawsuits in this Court,
alleging that numerous unnamed defendants (“Does”) have violated federal copyright laws by
downloading music from an “online media distribution system.” (See attached list of cases.) Each
of these cases names multiple defendants, with as many as 151 “Does” being named in one of the
actions. The recent cases actually encompass 254 defendants. It appears that the Plaintiffs may
intend to file future suits as well. There are no allegations in any of the cases that the defendants are
in any way related to each other, or that they acted in concert or as a group in their allegedly
offending actions.

With regard to joinder of claims, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provide that multiple
parties:

may be joined in one action as defendants if there is asserted against them jointly,

severally, or in the alternative, any right to relief in respect of or arising out of the

same transaction, occurrence, or series of transactions or occurrences and if any

question of law or fact common to all defendants will arise in the action.

FED. R. C1v. P. 20(a). There is no allegation in the recently-filed cases that the claims against the

joined defendants “arise out of the same transaction, occurrence or series of transactions or

occurrences.” The claim against each defendant is individual, based on individual acts of each
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List of cases

Fonovisa, Inc. et al. v. Does 1-41; No. A-04-CA-550 LY
Atlantic Recording Corporation, et al. v. Does 1-151; No. A-04-CA-636 SS
Elektra Entertainment Group, Inc., et al. v. Does 1-11; No. A-04-CA-703 LY

UMG Recordings, Inc., et al. v. Does 1-51; No. A-04-CA-704 LY
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EXHIBIT B
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

TWENTIETH CENTURY FOX FILM
CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation;

COLUMBIA PICTURES INDUSTRIES, INC, a

Delaware corporation; PARAMOUNT
PICTURES, CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation; WARNER BROS.
ENTERTAINMENT, INC., a Delaware
corporation; COLUMBIA TRISTAR HOME
ENTERTAINMENT, INC., a Delaware
corporation; and NEW LINE PRODUCTIONS,
INC., a Delaware corporation,

Plaintiffs,
V.
DOES 1-12,

Defendants.

No. C 04-04862 WHA

ORDER GRANTING IN PART AND
DENYING IN PART PLAINTIFFS’
MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE
REQUEST PURSUANT TO LOCAL RULE
7-10(b) FOR LEAVE TO TAKE
DISCOVERY PRIOR TO RULE 26
CONFERENCE

The application to take early discovery is granted, but only as to Doe 1. The reason is that this

case appears to present the same problem as the so-called “DirectTV” cases. There, Judge Ware was

eventually assigned 20 lawsuits, each involving multiple defendants. There, each of the multiple defendants

(in each action) were accused of illegally intercepting encrypted satellite communications. There, Judge

Ware held that the joinder of unrelated defendants violated FRCP 20 since, although the basic claim was

similar, the claims arose out of different transactions or occurrences. So too here — at least on the surface
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of the papers submitted. Such joinder may be an attempt to circumvent the filing fees by grouping
defendants into arbitrarily-joined actions but it could nonetheless appear improper under Rule 20. A copy
of Judge Ware’s order in the DirectTV cases is appended.

Consequently, until plaintiffs can show that this case should be treated differently, it will be stayed
as to Does 2-12 and prosecuted as to Doe 1. Early discovery as to Doe 1 is now allowed, good cause

having been shown. Plaintiffs may seek the identity of Doe 1 (but only Doe 1) from Pacific Bell Internet.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated: November 16, 2004. /s/William Alsup
WILLIAM ALSUP
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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NOT FOR CITATION
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SAN JOSE DIVISION
In the Matter of DIRECTYV, INC. Cases Case No. C-02-5912-JW and related matters
pending in the Northern District of subject to special referral

California,
ORDER REGARDING LIMITED
ASSIGNMENT TO DETERMINE ISSUES
REGARDING JOINDER OF
DEFENDANTS AND SHOWING NEEDED
TO ESTABLISH A PRIMA FACIE CASE
UNDER STATUTORY CLAIMS

I. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff DIRECTV, Inc. (“DIRECTV™) has filed approximately 20 lawsuits which have been
assigned to Judge Ware. Each lawsuit involves multiple defendants. These lawsuits claim that each
defendant possessed and used devices and equipment to intercept illegally DIRECTV’s encrypted
satellite communications. In addition to the cases assigned to Judge Ware, DIRECTV has filed in
this District over 180 lawsuits assigned to various District Judges and Magistrate Judges. Similar to
the cases pending before Judge Ware, the various lawsuits group together over 775 Defendants.

On the face of the various complaints, it appears that each joined defendant allegedly
purchased the interception equipment independently from one another and has no business or other
relationship with one another. Judge Ware sua sponte raised a question whether defendants who
purchased and used allegedly offending equipment (albeit the same type of equipment) in separate
transactions could properly be joined in the same lawsuit. Other judicial officers in this District to

whom the actions had been assigned raised the same concern.
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In addition, during the prosecution of the pending cases, when defendants did not respond to
the complaint, DIRECTYV requested entry of a default and subsequently requested entry of a default
judgment. In the course of the hearing for entry of a default judgment, Judge Ware raised a question
as to whether under the circumstances of these cases, DIRECTV was entitled to recover under the
various federal statutes upon which it based its claim, and if so, what was the prima facie showing
DIRECTYV had to make in order to be entitled to a default judgment.

Because the joinder and proof issues raised by Judge Ware were involved in each of the
actions pending in this District, in the interest of judicial economy and to avoid potentially
conflicting legal standards being applied, Chief Judge Marilyn Hall Patel referred all of the
DIRECTYV actions pending in this District to Judge Ware for the limited purposes of:

(1) Determining whether or not DIRECTV was in compliance with Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 20 with respect to its joinder of multiple defendants; and

(2) Ruling on the showing DIRECTV must make to be entitled to relief, including relief by
default judgment.

Pursuant to the Order of Limited Assignment, this Court ordered DIRECTYV to show cause, if
any, why transactionally unrelated defendants should not be dismissed and why it was entitled to
default judgment on the basis of the showing being made. A hearing for this limited purpose
assignment was conducted on June 21, 2004. Michael Williams and Alan Kessel appeared on behalf
of DIRECTV. Shaw Parr appeared on behalf of defendants and individual defendants Eric Verducci,
Matthew Ahangi and Bernard Maryanski appeared at the hearing.

II. BACKGROUND
.DIRECTYV, a California-based company, is in the business of distributing satellite television
broadcasts throughout the United States. DIRECTV delivers over 225 channels of television and
other programming to more than 10 million residences and businesses in the United States. It does
this by relaying digital signals from within the United States up to satellites hovering thousands of
miles above earth. Those signals are then broadcast back to earth, where they are captured by a fixed

outdoor satellite dish that is connected by cable to an indoor satellite receiver. The satellite receiver

2
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is connected by cable to a television monitor.

DIRECTV's signals are encrypted to prevent unauthorized reception and use of DIRECTV's
broadcasts. A programmable “access card” provided by DIRECTV, which is inserted in a slot in the
satellite receiver, is used to unscramble the signals. The access card is about the size of a credit card.
DIRECTYV remotely programs the access card electronically to unscramble portions of the satellite
signal so that a subscriber can view the specific television channels or listen to audio programs to
which he or she has subscribed. When a subscriber wants to view programming on a limited basis,
such as a pay-per-view movie or a special sporting event, he or she can do so by ordering the
program through the remote control or through a phone call. The access card records these
purchases and communicates the information to DIRECTV.

DIRECTV's main revenue source is from subscriptions paid by authorized users of its
signals. It has a significant interest in preventing the unauthorized receipt and use of its satellite
programming. Despite encryption technology used to protect DIRECTV's signal, apparently there
are individuals in the United States and other countries who have successfully developed and sold
devices and equipment that can intercept DIRECTV’s signal. Interception includes the illegal
programming of valid access cards used to pirate DIRECTV's signals (“Pirate Access Devices”). In
general, the Pirate Access Devices provide the user with access to all of DIRECTV's satellite
programming with no payment to DIRECTV.

During the past few years, DIRECTV has conducted raids on businesses that market and sell
Pirate Access Devices. Information derived from these raids has led DIRECTV to identify
individuals who have allegedly purchased and used the devices. Specifically, on or about May 25,
2001, with the cooperation of local law enforcement, DIRECTV obtained sales records, shipping
records, e-mail communications, credit card receipts and other records from a mail shipping facility
used by major distributors of Pirate Access Devices. Based primarily upon this information,
DIRECTYV brought over 180 lawsuits in this District against over 775 defendants.

In its lawsuits, DIRECTYV classifies defendants as “end users” or “resellers.” End users are

defendants who allegedly purchased a Pirate Access Device for allegedly personal use. Resellers are

3




United States District Court

O VL S ]

=R+ B N =

RN RN NN NN N — For the Northem District of California_,
co ~J (=) Ln NN LJ (o) [ o pt=] oo ~] (=) wn =N (%]

Case 1:10-cv-00453-RMC Document 26 Filed 06/07/10 Page 14 of 37

defendants who allegedly purchased significant quantities of Pirate Access Devices for alleged
distribution and resale to others.

DIRECTYV alleges that each end user or reseller defendant is a resident of this District who
has purchased and used illegally modified DIRECTYV access cards and other Pirate Access Devices
that are designed to permit viewing of DIRECTV’s programming without authorization by or
payment to DIRECTYV, all in violation of various federal telecommunication laws and related state
laws.

Significantly for purposes of the matters specially assigned to Judge Ware, the various
lawsuits joined groups of end users in a single lawsuit. Similarly, DIRECTV joined groups of
resellers in a single lawsuit. The Court turns its attention to whether this joinder is proper.

I1I. DISCUSSION
A. Joinder of Defendants

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 20(a) provides in pertinent part that:

[a]ll persons... may be joined in one action as defendants if there is asserted against
them jointly, severally, or in the alternative, any right to relief in respect of or arising

out of the same transaction, occurrence, or series of transactions or occurrences and
if any question of law or fact common to all defendants will arise in the action.

Fed. R. Civ. P. 20(a). The purpose of the rule is to promote trial convenience and expedite the final

determination of disputes, thereby preventing multiple lawsuits. League to Save Lake Tahoe v.
Tahoe Reg’l Planning Agency, 558 F.2d 914, 917 (9th Cir. 1977). Rule 20(a) imposes two specific
requisites to the joinder of parties: (1) a right to relief must be asserted by, or against, each plaintiff
or defendant relating to or arising out of the same transaction or occurrence, and (2) some question
of law or fact common to all the parties must arise in the action. Fed. R. Civ. P. 20(a). Both of these
requirements must be satisfied in order to justify party joinder under Rule 20(a). Id.

The rules governing permissive joinder are construed liberally in order to promote trial

convenience and to expedite the final determination of disputes. Id. “Joinder of claims, parties and

remedies is strongly encouraged.” United Mine Workers v. Gibbs, 383 U.S. 715, 724 (1966).

For the “same transaction or occurrence” requirement, courts have adopted a case-by-case
q p

4
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approach for ascertaining whether a particular factual situation constitutes a single transaction or
occurrence for the purposes of Rule 20(a).! 7 CHARLES ALAN WRIGHT, ARTHUR R. MILLER & MARY
Kay KANE, FEDERAL PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE § 1653 (3rd ed. 1998).

“Transaction” is admittedly “a word of flexible meaning,” and “may comprehend a series of
many occurrences, depending not so much upon the immediateness of their connection as upon their
logical relationship.” Mosley v. General Motors Corp., 497 F.2d 1330, 1333 (8th Cir. 1974).
However, “to be reasonably related, the actions must involve more than just similar goods that are

used for a similar purpose.” See DIRECTV, Inc. v. Boggess, 300 F. Supp. 2d 444, 449 (S.D. W. Va.

2004) (citing DIRECTV, Inc. v. Perez, No. 03-C3504, 2003 WL 22682344, at *1 (N.D. Ill. Nov. 12,

2003)).

DIRECTYV concedes there is no evidence that defendants acted in concert with each other or
had any relationship with each other. (DIRECTV, Inc.’s Resp. to Judge Ware’s Order to Show
Cause at 12:6-7.) Nevertheless, DIRECTYV asserts that the various defendants are properly joined
because the evidence identifying each defendant was derived from execution of a common writ of
seizure, and “in most instances, [the defendants] are grouped together based on the raid sources from
which the evidence against them was obtained.” (DIRECTV’s Resp. at 12:12-13.)*

If, as is the case here, the purchase or use of an allegedly offending device is asserted as the

' “There can be no hard and fast rule, and ... the approach must be the general one of whether
there are enough ultimate factual concurrences that it would be fair to the parties to require them to

defend jointly [the claims] against them.” Eastern Fireproofing Co. v. U.S. Gypsum Co.,
160 F. Supp. 580, 581 (D. Mass. 1958).

? For the second requirement, Rule 20(a) “does not require the commonality of all questions
of law and fact raised in the dispute, rather, the requirement is satisfied if there is any question of law
or fact common to all parties.” Puricelli v. CNA Ins. Co., 185 F.R.D. 139, 143 (N.D.N.Y. 1999).

DIRECTYV contends that it has also satisfied the second prong of Rule 20(a). It asserts
identical statutory claims against defendants for their alleged possession, purchase and use of devices
designed to pirate its satellite signals, or for the unlawful manufacture, distribution, and/or sale of
illegal devices intended to permit viewing of its satellite programming. DIRECTYV argues that these
common statutory causes of action will raise similar questions of law, as well as similar questions of
fact.

In the context of this case, the Court finds properly joined transactionally connected
defendants would satisfy this requirement.




United States District Court

o 0 N1y L A W N

—t et e
th B W N = O

strict of California

=)

RN NN NN DN e For the Norther Di
~J (o) Lh += (¥%] b — =] \{=] oo ~l

[\
co

Case 1:10-cv-00453-RMC Document 26 Filed 06/07/10 Page 16 of 37

basis of a defendant’s liability, in order to join multiple defendants in a single case, DIRECTV must
allege that the individual purchases by the joined Defendants occurred in the same transaction or
occurrence, or were part of a series of transactions which were connected to one another. See

DIRECTYV, Inc. v. Davlantis, No. 03-C3506, 2003 WL 22844401, at *2 (N.D. Ill. Nov. 26, 2003).

DIRECTYV raided approximately nine shipping facilities. Records from the shipping facilities listed
the manufacturers of the unlawful devices and listed the end users or resellers to whom the devices
where shipped. DIRECTYV used this information to identify defendants and grouped them together
on the basis of receiving the devices from a common shipping point.

Individual purchasers, who have no business connection with one another and who make
their purchases independently of one another are not engaged in the same transaction simply because

their purchases were processed through the same shipper. See DIRECTV, Inc. v. Adrian, No. 03-

C6366, 2004 WL 1146122, at *3 (N.D. Ill. May 18, 2004); DIRECTV v. Lewis, No. 03-CV-

6241CJS(F), 2004 WL 941805, at *7 (W.D. N.Y. Jan. 6, 2004); Davlantis, 2003 WL 22844401, at
*2; DIRECTV, Inc. v. Loussaert, 218 F.R.D. 639, 644 (S.D. Iowa 2003); Boggess, 300 F. Supp. 2d

at 449,

In Movie Systems, Inc. v. Abel, a distributor of television entertainment programs, claiming

unlawful pirating of its microwave signals, filed an action against 1795 individual party defendants
by filing 18 similarly worded actions with approximately 100 defendants allocated to each filing.

Movie Sys., Inc. v. Abel, 99 F.R.D. 129 (D. Minn. 1983). The court found a misjoinder of party

defendants in contravention of the “same transaction” requirement of Rule 20(a). Id. at 130.

It may be that the complaints assert a right to relief against all defendants arising from
similar transactions, but the rule permitting joinder requires that such arise from the
same transactions. They don’t here. Each of the complaints states a separate cause of
action against each of the 1795 defendants. No concert of action is alleged, nor could
it be because the operative facts of each transaction are distinct and unrelated to any
other. There is no claim that the alleged pirating of microwave signals was done
other than independently by each of the 1795 defendants.

DIRECTYV defends its joinder on the ground that it has properly grouped defendants on the

basis of geographical location, namely the defendants are in the same district or area, and have

6
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allegedly purchased the same type(s) of devices. Unrelated defendants performing the same act in

the same area is improper ground for joinder. See Adrian, 2004 WL 1146122, at *3.
DIRECTYV contends that commonality exists because defendants injured DIRECTYV in the
same manner.” (DIRECTV’s Resp. at 12:14-16.) Allegations of similar statutory violations do not

satisfy the first prong of Rule 20(a). See Adrian, 2004 WL 1146122, at *3; Davlantis, 2003 WL

22844401, at *2.

During oral argument, DIRECTYV likened its joinder of multiple defendants to a case where a
raid is conducted at a location where stolen property is being sold or “fenced.” DIRECTYV asserts
that it would be proper to name the fence and each customer caught in the raid in a single case.” The
Court does not reject this analogy as an example of proper joinder. However, the Court finds that
DIRECTYV has failed to satisfy the Court that its joinder decisions make this an apt analogy.

DIRECTYV provided the Court with a chart containing nine columns listing the date each
action was filed, the case number of each action pending in this District, the name of the case, the
number of defendants joined in the action, the name of each defendant in the action, the alleged
pirate access device(s) purchased by each defendant, the vendor from which the devices were
purchased, and the raid source from which the evidence was obtained. (DIRECTV’s Resp. Ex. A.)
In total, there are over 25 different types of devices purchased from over 20 different vendors by over
775 defendants. DIRECTYV executed writs of seizure on at least eight shipping facilities. Id.

Assuming that there are circumstances which would allow joinder of a seller of unlawful
goods and each customer in a single lawsuit proper, that is not what DIRECTV has done in this
District. First, none of the cases pending in this District join an alleged reseller in a single action

against alleged end user customers of that reseller. In the actions pending in this District, DIRECTV

* In many of the cases there was no appearing defendant. In response to the Show Cause
Order, however, some defendants did appear. Those defendants who appeared, contended that in
most cases, DIRECTYV grouped defendants for its own efficiency. Defendants argued that
DIRECTYV joins defendants that have no business relationship with or knowledge of one another.
Defendants also contended that contrary to DIRECTV’s alleged raid-based grouping, defendants are
joined with other defendants who have allegedly purchased different devices from different vendors,
and the evidence obtained against them is from different raid sources.
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has variously joined in a single action multiple so-called end user Defendants who have allegedly
purchased different devices from different vendors, and these purchases have been processed by
different shipping facilities. In some actions pending in this District, DIRECTV has joined end user
defendants who have allegedly purchased different devices from the same vendor, however, the
common vendor is not sued. Therefore, even if the Court were to allow DIRECTYV to join in a single
action a reseller and all customers of that reseller, the Court finds that DIRECTYV has failed to make
a requisite showing that it has joined party defendants on that basis.

DIRECTYV has filed numerous lawsuits across the nation, alleging similar claims. Some
courts in other Districts faced with this same joinder issue have declined to order severance of

DIRECTV’s claims. DIRECTV, Inc. v. Russomanno, No. 03-2475, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 23403,

at *14 (D.N.J. Nov. 12, 2003) (difficult at an early stage in the litigation to conduct an analysis to
determine whether the claims against defendants involve the same factual issues or arise out of the
same transactions or series of transactions. “[ W]ithout some discovery and the development of a
substantive factual record, defendants cannot yet demonstrate the propriety of severing the claims

and instituting separate actions against each of them.”); DIRECTYV, Inc. v. Hosey, 289 F. Supp. 2d

1259, 1262 (D. Kan. 2003) (declined to sever the claims because it was “not prepared to hold that the
claims in this case did not arise out of the same transaction, occurrence, or series of transactions or

occurrences.”); DIRECTV, Inc. v. Essex, No. C02-5503RJB, 2002 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 26923, at *4

(W.D. Wash. Nov. 13, 2002) (declined to sever claims because defendants “purchased and used
Pirate Access Devices . . . from the same distribution center in Santa Ana, California” and that the
alleged purchases fell “within a twelve-month time frame, from June 2000 through May 2001.”).

Other courts have found the same kind of joinder used in cases filed in this District improper.
See e.g., Perez, 2003 WL 22682344, at *1 (noting that unrelated defendants who purchase Pirate
Access Devices in separate transactions engage in distinct and unrelated acts); DIRECTV v.
Beecher, 296 F. Supp. 2d 937, 945 (S.D. Ind. 2003) (“DIRECTYV alleges that many individuals have
wronged it in the same way, but in separate transactions or occurrences.”); Boggess, 300 F. Supp. 2d
at 449; Davlantis, 2003 WL 22844401 at *2; DIRECTV, Inc. v. Armellino, 216 F.R.D. 240, 241

8
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(E.D.N.Y. 2003); Loussaert, 218 F.R.D. 639, 644. See also, Lewis, 2004 WL 941805, at *7;

DIRECTV, Inc. v. Westerheide, No. 03-C3476, 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 1417, at *2 (N.D. IIl. Feb. 4,

2004); DIRECTV, Inc. v. Long, No. SA-03-CA-360-XR, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 23396, at *8 (W.D.

Tex. Oct. 29, 2003); DIRECTV, Inc. v. Smith, No. 03-C3540, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20091, at *3

(N.D. 1Il. Sep. 18, 2003); DIRECTYV, Inc. v. Patel, No. 03-C3442, 2003 WL 22669031, at *1 (N.D.

[11. Nov. 10, 2003); DIRECTV, Inc. v. Gatsiolis, No. 03-C3534, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20275, at *5

(N.D. 1Il. Nov. 10, 2003); DIRECTV, Inc. v. Geenen, No. 03-C3542, 2003 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20229,

at *5 (N.D. I11. Nov. 10, 2003).

The Court finds the defendants’ actions do not arise out of the same transaction or
occurrence, nor are a part of a series of connected transactions or occurrences. Thus, DIRECTV has
violated Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 20(a) in the actions filed in this District.*

Finding that joinder of defendants is improper under Rule 20(a), the Court must decide a
proper remedy. Fed. R. Civ. P. 21 provides in pertinent part that "[pJarties may be dropped or added
by order of the court on motion of any party or of its own initiative at any stage of the action and on
such terms as are just." Fed. R. Civ. P. 21. Alternatively, "[a]ny claim against a party may be
severed and proceeded with separately.” Id. In formulating a remedy for improper joinder, the court

must avoid prejudice to the parties. See Elmore v. Henderson, 227 F.3d 1009, 1012 (7th Cir. 2001).

Accordingly, as set forth below, the Court finds that, except for the first-named defendants,
the claims against all other defendants should be dismissed, without prejudice to DIRECTV re-filing
against those defendants in separate actions. The Court also finds that except for the first-named
defendants, all previously entered default judgments should be vacated.

The Court acknowledges the potential statute of limitations consequences of dismissal.

Accordingly, the Court finds that as to any defendant ordered dismissed pursuant to this Order, if on

* The Court is mindful of the cost of litigation and the savings which can be experienced
when claims and parties are properly joined. Nothing in this Order is intended to effect DIRECTV’s
rights to seek legitimate methods to minimize the cost of the litigation process, such as: filing a class
action lawsuit; consolidating actions; or stipulating to use depositions and other evidence for one
lawsuit in another lawsuit.
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or before August 26, 2004, DIRECTYV files a separate action, such action shall be deemed a
continuation of the original action for purposes of the statute of limitations.
B. Proof Necessary for Recovery Under Federal Statutes

To the extent that the Court’s order of dismissal for improper joinder leaves any actions
pending before this Court for which default judgment is sought, the Court addresses the prima facie
showing DIRECTV must make to be entitled to a default judgment.

In many of the actions pending in this District, the named defendants have not answered the
complaint and DIRECTYV has obtained entry of their defaults pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 55(a). DIRECTYV has used a uniform procedure for proving its entitlement to a default
judgment. DIRECTYV alleges and presents evidence that a defendant purchased a Pirate Access
Device, and offers evidence of the source and circumstances of the purchase as circumstantial
evidence that the defendant used the device to intercept its satellite communications. The Court now
addresses the sufficiency of this showing under the various federal statutes upon which DIRECTV
bases its claims.

1. The Allegations of the Complaint are Taken as True for Purposes of Entry of

Default Judgment

“Upon entry of default, the well-pleaded allegations of the complaint relating to a defendant's
liability are taken as true,” and the defaulting party is deemed to have admitted all allegations in the
complaint pertaining to liability (but not allegations as to the amount of damages). See TeleVideo

System, Inc. v. Heidenthal, 826 F.2d 915, 917-18 (9th Cir. 1987); Dundee Cement Co. v. Howard

Pipe & Concrete Prods., Inc., 722 F.2d 1319, 1323 (7th Cir. 1983).

In exercising its discretion to grant default judgment, the court may consider the following
factors: (1) the possibility of prejudice to the plaintiff; (2) the merits of plaintiff's substantive claim;
(3) the sufficiency of the complaint; (4) the sum of money at stake in the action; (5) the possibility of
a dispute concerning material facts; (6) whether the default was due to excusable neglect; and (7) the
strong policy underlying the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure favoring decisions on the merits. Eitel

v. McCool, 782 F.2d 1470, 1471-72 (9th Cir. 1986).

10
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The Court has the discretion to consider DIRECTV to have met its burden of proof by the
admissions of liability which accompany entry of default against each defendant. However, the court
also has power to require additional proof of any fact alleged in the complaint as the basis for

liability. See Quirindongo Pacheco v. Rolon Morales, 953 F.2d 15, 16 (1st Cir. 1992).

However, “necessary facts not contained in the pleadings, and claims which are legally

insufficient, are not established by default.” Cripps v. Life Ins. Co., 980 F.2d 1261, 1267 (9th Cir.
1992).

Therefore, the Court examines the complaints to determine if under the statutes sued upon
DIRECTYV is asserting claims for which it is entitled to a civil remedy.

2. Statutory Claims

a. 18 U.S.C. § 2511(1)(a)

In the actions pending before this Court, and presumably in each action pending in this

District, DIRECTYV alleges a civil claim under Title 18 U.S.C. § 2511(1)(a). However, § 2511(1)(a)

is a criminal statute which provides that “any person who...intentionally intercepts, endeavors to

intercept, or procures any other person to intercept or endeavor to intercept, any wire, oral or
electronic communication...shall be punished....or shall be subject to suit as provided in subsection
(5).° DIRECTV is not entitled to any relief under § 2511(1)(a).
b. 18 U.S.C. § 2520(a)
Section 2520 (a) of Title 18 U.S.C. creates a private cause of action for interception,

disclosure or intentional use of wire, oral or electronic communication. DIRECTV, Inc. v.

Beauchamp, 302 F. Supp. 2d 786, 796 (W.D. Mich. 2004); Hosey, 289 F. Supp. 2d at 1263;
DIRECTYV, Inc. v. Huynh, 318 F. Supp. 2d 1122, 1129 (M.D. Ala. 2004); Lewis, 2004 WL 941805,

at *6.
Section 2520(a) provides:

Except as provided in section 2511(2)(a)(ii), any person whose wire, oral, or

*Subsection 5 allows a civil action by the Federal Government only for certain types of
communications.

11
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electronic communication is intercepted, disclosed, or intentionally used in violation

of this chapter may in a civil action recover from the person...which engaged in that

violation such relief as may be appropriate.

DIRECTYV has not stated a claim for relief under § 2520(a). Some courts have allowed civil
actions to proceed under § 2511(1)(a), but the courts in those cases have deemed the actions as

governed by § 2520(a).* See e.g., DIRECTV, Inc. v. Brower, 303 F. Supp. 2d 856, 863 (W.D. Mich.

2004); DIRECTV. Inc. v. Gilliam, 303 F. Supp. 2d 864, 872 (W.D. Mich. 2004).

The Court deems the claims stated under § 2511(1)(a) as claims under § 2520(a).” In order to
state a claim under § 2520(a), DIRECTV must allege that it is a “person whose wire, oral, or

electronic communication is intercepted, disclosed, or intentionally used.” Lewis, 2004 WL 941805,

at *6 (The plain language of § 2520 requires a plaintiff to prove that the defendant has intercepted,
disclosed, or intentionally used plaintiff’s wire, oral, or electronic communication, and “then, if that
condition is met, a plaintiff may recover “from the person or entity ... which engaged in that violation
such relief as may be appropriate.”).

In the cases pending before this Court, and presumably in each case pending in this District,
DIRECTYV has alleged facts which if proven would entitle DIRECTV to recover under § 2520(a).

As discussed above, in order to recover a default judgment, DIRECTV must present evidence
proving these allegations. However, upon entry of default, the allegations that its signals were
“intercepted, disclosed, or intentionally used” are taken as true. Therefore, the Court finds that
DIRECTYV has properly alleged a claim under § 2520(a) against any properly joined defendants who
are alleged to have purchased and used Pirate Access Devices to intercept its satellite programming
without authorization. Upon default by such a defendant, DIRECTV would be entitled to the

remedies provided by § 2520(a), according to proof. With respect to this and the other claims, the

SThese courts have held that because the plaintiff cited § 2520(a) in its prayer for relief, it was
sufficiently clear the plaintiff was alleging that the defendant violated § 2511(1)(a) as part of its
claim under § 2520(a).

"In all future filings before this District, if DIRECTYV states a civil claim under § 2511(1)(a),
the claim will be dismissed.

12
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Court addresses the appropriate remedy below.
c. 18 U.S.C. § 2512(1)(b)
Title 18 U.S.C. § 2512(1)(b) provides, in pertinent part:

[A]ny person who intentionally...manufactures, assembles, possesses, or sells
any...device, knowing or having reason to know that the design of such device renders
it primarily useful for the purpose of the surreptitious interception of...electronic
communications, and that such device...has been or will be sent through the mail or
transported in interstate...commerce...shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not
more than five years, or both.

(emphasis added). Like § 2511(1)(a), § 2512(1)(b) is a criminal statute. Unlike § 2511(1)(a),
however, there is no parallel statute which provides a private right of action for violations of Section
2512(1)(b). See DIRECTV v. Treworgy, No. 03-15313, 2004 WL 1317849 , at *5 (11th Cir. 2004);
see also DIRECTV v. Cardona, 275 F. Supp. 2d 1357 (M.D. Fla. 2003).

Therefore, the plain language of § 2520(a) does “[not] create a private right of action against
a person who possesses a device in violation of § 2512.” Treworgy, 2004 WL 1317849. at *5. As
set forth below, the Court orders all claims under § 2512(1)(b) dismissed.

d. 47 U.S.C. § 605(a)
Title 47 U.S.C. § 605(a) provides as follows:

[N]o person receiving, [or] assisting in receiving ... any interstate ...communication by
wire ... shall divulge or publish the ... contents ... thereof, except through authorized
channels of ... reception, (1) to any person other than the addressee, his agent, or
attorney, (2) to a person employed or authorized to forward such communication to its
destination, (3) to proper accounting or distributing officers of the various
communication centers over which the communication may be passed, (4) to the
master of a ship of whom he is serving, (5) in response to a subpoena issued by a court
of competent jurisdiction, or (6) on demand of other lawful authority. No person not
being authorized by the sender shall intercept any radio communication and divulge or
publish the ... contents...of such intercepted communication to any person. No person
not being entitled thereto shall receive or assist in receiving any interstate or foreign
communication by radio and use such communication (or any information therein
contained) for his own benefit or for the benefit of another not entitled thereto. No
person having received any intercepted radio communication or having become
acquainted with the contents ... of such communication (or any part thereof) knowing
that such communication was intercepted, shall divulge or publish the ... contents ...of
such communication (or any part thereof) or use such communication (or any
information therein contained) for his own benefit or for the benefit of another not
entitled thereto.

13




United States District Court

=T = B T = T ¥ L L ¥ e S

fCalifomia_, _, | -
o Lh E -9 (98] (3] =]

RN R NN NN N D Far the Northem District ¢
co ~] (=) wn N (8] (o) b [ o oo ~J

Case 1:10-cv-00453-RMC Document 26 Filed 06/07/10 Page 24 of 37

Title 47 U.S.C. § 605(e) provides that any “person aggrieved by any violation of subsection (a) ...
may bring a civil action in a United States district court.”

DIRECTYV alleges in its complaints that defendants possessed Pirate Access Devices and
received its satellite transmission without authorization. Upon entry of default, this allegation is
deemed admitted. In Huynh, the Court inferred from the defendant’s possession of the Pirate Access
Device that he received DIRECTV’s signal without authorization of § 605(a). Huynh, 318 F. Supp.
2d at 1128. The Huynh court emphasized that, “had DIRECTV alleged only that Huynh possessed a
pirate-access device, this would not have been sufficient to state a claim under the plain language of

§ 605(a). [T]o establish liability under § 605(a), a plaintiff must prove that the defendant received or

assisted in receiving a communication to which he was not entitled.” Id. at 1128, n.11. See also

DIRECTV, Inc. v. Getchel, 2004 WL 1202717, *1 (D. Conn. May 26, 2004) (The court may

reasonably conclude that [the defendant] purchased the device in order to pirate DIRECTV’s
transmissions.”).

Accordingly, the Court finds that DIRECTYV properly alleges a claim against properly joined
defendants under § 605(a) and upon default, would be entitled to the remedies provided by that
statute, according to proof.

e. 17 U.S.C. § 1201(a)(2)

Finally, as to the “reseller” Defendants only, DIRECTYV alleges that the reseller defendants
have violated the Digital Millennium Copyright Act of 1998 (“DMCA”), 17 U.S.C. § 1201(a)(2),
which penalizes the distribution of devices designed to circumvent technological measures intended
to limit access to copyright material. Section 1201(a)(2) provides as follows:

(2) No person shall manufacture, import, offer to the public, provide, or otherwise

traffic in any technology, product, service, device, component, or part thereof, that-

(A) is primarily designed or produced for the purpose of circumventing a
technological measure that effectively controls access to a work protected
under this title;

(B) has only limited commercially significant purpose or use other than to
circumvent a technological measure that effectively controls access to a work
protected under this title; or

(C) is marketed by that person or another acting in concert with that person

with that person's knowledge for use in circumventing a technological
measure that effectively controls access to a work protected under this title.

14
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The DMCA explicitly provides for a civil cause of action for “any person injured by a violation of
section 1201.” 17 U.S.C. § 1203(a).

DIRECTYV alleges that reseller defendants actively engaged in “manufacturing, ... providing
and/or trafficking in pirate access devices knowing or having reason to know that such devices are
primarily designed for the purpose of circumventing DIRECTV’s encryption and conditional access”
and “have only limited commercially significant purpose ... other than to circumvent” DIRECTV’s
controlled access. (Williams Decl. Ex. B at §43.) DIRECTYV further alleges that reseller defendants
violations have injured DIRECTYV through deprivatidn of subscription and pay-per-view revenues.
Id. at 7 44.

Accordingly, the Court finds that DIRECTYV properly alleges a claim against properly joined
defendants under § 1201(a)(2) and upon default, would be entitled to the remedies provided by that
statute, according to proof.

2. Damages

Finding that DIRECTV may recover against properly joined end user defendants under §
2520(a) and § 605(a), and against properly joined reseller defendants under those provisions as well
as under § 1201(a)(2), the Court now turns to the recovery to which DIRECTYV is entitled.

The Court may conduct hearings or order such references as it deems necessary and proper in
order to “determine the amount of damages or to establish the truth of any averment by evidence or
to make an investigation of any other matter.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 55(b)(2).

In a request for a default judgment the process of assessing damages is limited by Fed. R.
Civ. P. 54(c), which states that “[a] judgment by default shall not be different in kind or exceed in
amount that prayed for in the [complaint].”

In its complaint, DIRECTYV requests that “in the event of a default, an award of statutory
damages of $10,000 for each pirate access device, ... and a further award of DIRECTV’s reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs of suit.” (Williams Decl. Exh. A. §4.) Thus in no event may DIRECTV
recover greater than $10,000, plus attorneys’ fees and costs in any complaint which contains this

allegation.

15
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a, 18 U.S.C. § 2520(c)(2)

Under § 2520(c)(2), a court may assess damages for violations of § 2520(a). Section
2520(c)(2) provides that the court may assess as damages whichever is the greater of - -

(A) the sum of the actual damages suffered by the plaintiff and any profits made by

the violator as a result of the violation; or

(B) statutory damages of whichever is the greater of $100 a day for each day of

violation or $10,000.

In determining the amount of damages under § 2520(c)(2), first, the court should determine

“the amount of actual damages to the plaintiff plus the profits derived by the violator, if any.” Dorris

v. Absher, 179 F.3d 420, 430 (6th Cir. 1999); 18 U.S.C. § 2520(c)(2)(A). Second, the court should

“ascertain the number of days that the statute was violated, and multiply by $100.” Dorris, 179 F.3d
at 430; 18 U.S.C. § 2520(c)(2)(B). Third, the court should “tentatively award the plaintiff the greater
of the above two amounts” (actual damages or statutory damages) unless each is less than $10,000,
in which case $10,000 is to be the presumed award. Dorris, 179 F.3d at 430. Finally, the court
should “exercise its discretion to determine whether the plaintiff should receive any damages at all in
the case before it.” Id.; 18 U.S.C. § 2520(c)(2). However, the court may not award an amount

falling between those two choices. DIRECTV, Inc. v. Hedger, No. 03-CV-733, 2004 WL 1396274,

*2 (W.D. Mich. April 20, 2004) (citing DIRECTV, Inc. v. Griffin, 290 F. Supp. 2d 1340, 1347-48

n.28 (M.D. Fla. 2003).
In exercising its discretion, courts have opted to award less than the requested amount. The
court has “broad discretion, to award damages as authorized by the statute, or to award no damages

atall.” DIRECTYV, Inc. v. Kaas, 294 F. Supp. 2d 1044, 1048 (N.D. Iowa 2003) (citing Reynolds v.

Spears, 93 F.3d 428, 435 (8th Cir. 1996). In Kass, the court granted Plaintiff’s motion for default
judgment but awarded no damages under 18 U.S.C. § 2520(c)(2) after noting that “there is no
evidence [the defendant] profited from the pirate access device” and that “although a reasonable
assumption, there is no evidence he even used the device, only that he received it.” Kass, 294 F.

Supp. 2d at 1049.
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b. 18 U.S.C. § 2512(1)(b)

All actions under § 2512(1)(b) having been ordered dismissed, DIRECTYV is not entitled to

any remedy under that provision.®
c. 47 U.S.C. § 605(e)

Title 47 U.S.C. § 605(e) provides that any “person aggrieved by any violation of subsection
(a) ... may bring a civil action in a United States district court or in any other court of competent
jurisdiction.” Section 605(e)(4) provides that for purposes of all penalties and remedies established,
the prohibited practices established as it applies to each such device shall be deemed a separate
violation.

DIRECTYV asserts that § 605(¢) authorizes the court to award statutory damages of not less
than $1,000 nor more than $10,000 for each violation of § 605(a), with additional damages of up to
$100,000 per violation, upon showing that a defendant acted willfully and for the purposes of direct
or indirect commercial advantage or private financial gain. See 47 U.S.C. § 605(e)(3)(C)(1), (ii);
(DIRECTV’s Resp. at 18:15-19.)

A court has discretion to increase the award to not more than $100,000, where it finds that
the defendant’s violation was committed “willfully and for the purposes of direct or indirect
commercial advantage or private financial gain,” or to decrease the award to no less than $250 where
the court finds that the defendant “was not aware and had no reason to believe that his acts
constituted a violation of” § 605(a). 47 U.S.C. § 605(e)(3)(C)(ii), (iii).

The burden is on DIRECTYV to provide justification for why damages in excess of the
minimum should be awarded. See DIRECTV, Inc. v. Hamilton, 215 F.R.D. 460, 463 (S.D.N.Y.

2003).

The cases are referred back to each assigned judicial officer to conduct further proceedings to

® To the extent a default judgment has already been allowed for claims under § 2512(1)(b)
prior to the date of this Order, this Court refers the matters back to the assigned judicial officers for
further consideration. It might well be that those judgments would be allowed to stand if, for
example, the remedy would be the same under alternative applicable provisions. There might also
be instances where a defaulting defendant would seek to set aside a default judgment entered on this
ground.

17




United States District Court

=R I T = T R e P,

NN RN NN NN D e For the Northem District of California_, |,
o0 ~] (=) L B (F8 ] o —t ] o oo | (=) wh =N (¥8] b2 — o

Case 1:10-cv-00453-RMC Document 26 Filed 06/07/10 Page 28 of 37

award damages under § 605 against any properly joined defendants. In instances where the same
conduct is asserted as a violation of more than one statute, care should be exercised to avoid
duplicity beyond what is statutorily allowed.
d. 17 U.S.C. § 1203

Remedies for violations of 17 U.S.C. § 1201(a)(2) are governed by 17 U.S.C. § 1203. In the
actions pending in this Court, DIRECTV has not sought any remedy under §1203. The cases are
referred back to each assigned judicial officer to conduct further proceedings to award damages
under § 1203, against any properly joined defendants, if requested.

IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, the Court Orders as follows:

1. Inall DIRECTYV actions pending in this District, unless the individually assigned District
Judge or Magistrate Judge otherwise orders, the action is dismissed without prejudice against all
defendants except the first-named defendant. Nothing in this Order is intended to prevent DIRECTV
from filing a duly noticed motion before the assigned District Judge or Magistrate Judge for
permission to join additional transactionally related defendants. If on or before August 26, 2004,
DIRECTYV files a separate action against a defendant dismissed pursuant to this Order, such action
shall be deemed a continuation of the original action for purposes of the statute of limitations.

2. Inall DIRECTV actions pending in this District, all claims alleging violations of 18
U.S.C. § 2511(1)(a) shall be deemed to proceed under § 2520(a). In all future filings before this
District, DIRECTYV shall not state a claim under § 2511(1)(a).

3. In all actions pending in this District, all claims alleging violations of 18 U.S.C. §
2512(1)(b) are dismissed with prejudice.

4. DIRECTYV is advised that all future claims must be initiated in accordance with this
Order. Failure to comply with this Order may result in dismissal of the entire action and/or
sanctions.

5. In all DIRECTYV actions remaining against the first-named defendant, unless the

individually assigned District Judge or Magistrate Judge otherwise orders, any pending motions shall
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be re-noticed by the parties. In actions where DIRECTYV re-notices a request to enter a default
judgment, in addition to other showings in support of the request for default judgment, the request
shall contain a declaration of counsel of compliance with this Order. DIRECTYV shall lodge a
proposed form of default judgment which sets forth the relief requested. With respect to statutory
damages, the proposed form of default judgment shall set forth each statute under which damages are
requested and how the statutory damages were calculated.

6. In all DIRECTYV actions pending before Judge Ware, the Clerk of Court is directed to
vacate all previously entered default judgments against all defendants, except the first-named
defendant.

7. All other DIRECTYV cases are referred back to the assigned District Judge or Magistrate
Judge to determine whether to vacate any previously entered default judgments or to allow such
judgments to stand, and to take further action as deemed appropriate.

/1

Dated: July 26, 2004 /s/ James Ware
JAMES WARE
United States District Judge
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

ELEKTRA ENTERTAINMENT :
GROUP, INC. ET AL., :
Plaintiffs
V. CIVIL ACTION
: NO. 04-1241
DOES 1-6, :
Defendants : r
orRDER ' FILED OCT 13 2004

AND NOW, this 12th day of October, 2004, upon consideration of Plaintiffs’ Motion for
Leave to Take Immediate Discovery [Doc. #4], the Declaration of Jonathan Whitehead in support
thereof [ Doc. #5], and Plaintiffs’ Second Supplemental Memorandum in support thereof [Doc.
#13], and after several conferences with counsel for Plaintiffs and counsel for the amici curiae,’ it
hereby ORDERED that Plaintiffs” Motion is GRANTED. It is further ORDERED as follows:
1. Plaintiffs may take immediate discovery on the University of Pennsylvania to
obtain the identity of each Doe Defendant by serving a Rule 45 subpoena that seeks
information sufficient to identify each Doe Defendant, including name, address,
telephone number, e-mail address, and Media Access Control addresses for each
Defendant,
2. Plaintiffs may use the information obtained by this Rule 45 subpoena solely for the
purpose of protecting Plaintiffs’ rights under the'Copyn' ght Act.

3. Plamntiffs shall attach the Court Directed Notice Regarding Issuance of Subpoena, a

! Although the American Civil Liberties Union, the ACLU of Pennsylvania, the Electignic Frontier
Foundation, and the Public Citizen did not intervene as amici curiac in the above-captioned case, they have
intervened and appear on the record in most or al] of the other related music cases filed in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania. Further, the amici curiae participated in the drafting of the Court Ordéred Notice described in
paragraph 3 of this Order, and Plaintiffs have acknowledged that the amici have appesred to protect the rights of the
Doe Defendants in all of the related music cases. -

OCT-14-2804 10:108 CLERK'S OFFICE 99x%
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copy of which is attached to this Order, to the aforementioned Rule 45 subpoena.
The Rule 45 subpoena shall instruct the University of Pennsylvania to distribute a
copy of said notice to each Doe Defendant within seven days of service of the
subpoena.

4. This ruling applies to all current and future cases filed in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania that are related to the above-captioned case.

S. Any future notices to any Defendant in this case or any related case filed in the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania must be pre-approved by the Court and filed in the
record.

It is so ORDERED.

BY THE COURT:

O i s

QYNTHIA M. RUFE, J. 7

ENTERE]
0CT 1 4 2904
CLERk OF COURT
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COURT-DIRECTED NOTICE
REGARDING ISSUANCE OF SUBPOENA

A subpoena has been issued directing , your Internet Service
Provider (“ISP™) to disclose your name. The subpoena has been issued because you have been
sued in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia,
PA as a “John Doe” by the major record companies. You have been sued for infringing
copyrights on the Internet by uploading and/or downloading music. The record companies have
identified you only as a “John Doe” and have served a subpoena on your ISP to learn your
identity. This notice is intended to inform you of sore of your rights and options.

YOUR NAME HAS NOT YET BEEN DISCLOSED.
YOUR NAME WILL BE DISCLOSED IN 21 DAYS IF YOU DO NOT
CHALLENGE THE SUBPOENA.

Your name has not yet been disclosed. The record companies have given the
Court enough information about your alleged infringement to obtain a subpoena to identify you,
but the Court has not decided whether you are liable for infringement. You can challenge the
subpoena in Court. You have 21 days from the date of this notice to file 2 motion to quash or
vacate the subpoena. If you file a motion to quash the subpoena, your identity will not be
disclosed until the motion is resolved (and the companies cannot proceed against you until you
are identified). The second page of this Notice can assist you in locating an attomney and lists
other resources to help you determine how to respond 1o the subpoena. If you do not file a
motion to quash, at the end of the 21 day period, your ISP will send the record company
plaintiffs your identification information.

OTHER ISSUES REGARDING THE LAWSUIT AGAINST YOU

To maintain a lawsuit against you in the District Court in Philadelphia, the record
companies must establish jurisdiction over you in Pennsylvania. If you do not live or work in
Pernsylvania, or visit the state regularly, you may be able to challenge the Pennsylvania court’s
jurisdiction over you. If your challenge is successful, the case in Philadelphia will be dismissed,
but the record companies may be able to file against you in another state where there is
jurisdiction.

The record companies are willing to discuss the possible settlement of their claims
es may be able to reach a settlemnent agreement without your name
appearing on the public record. You may be asked to disclose your identity to the record
companies if you seek to pursue settlement. If a settlement is reached, the case against you will be
dismissed. Defendants who seek to settle at the beginning of a case may be offered more
favoreble terms by the record companies. You may contact the record companies’ representatives
by phone at (206) 973-4145, by fax at (206) 242-0905 or by email at

info@sr:ttlemcutsuggonczntcr.com.

You may also wish to find your own lawyer (see resource list below) to help you
evaluate whether it is more in your interest to try to reach a settlement or defend against the

lawsuit.

against you. The parti

c-d CLcT mee,s A=
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RESOURCE LIST

The organizations listed below provide guidance on how to find an attorney. If
you live in or near Pennsylvania or Philadelphia, the sccond and third listings below provice

referrals for local attorneys.
American Bar Association - http://www.abanet arp/legalservices/findlegalhelp/home. htm.

Pennsylvania Bar Association — www.pba.org.
Lawyer referral service — (800) 692-7375 or (717) 238-7807.

Philadelphia Bar Association — www.philabar.org
Lawyer referral service — (215) 238-6333.

The below-listed organizations appeared before the Court as “friends of the court”
to attempt to protect what they belicve to be the due process and First Amendment rights of Doe
defendants. These organizations are prepared to help you consider your legal options.

American Civil Liberties Union of Pennsylvania
P.0O.Box 1161

Philadelphia, PA 19105
Phone: — (215) 592-1513, ext. 1

Electronic Frontier Foundation
454 Shotwell Street

San Francisco, CA 94110-1914
E-majl: RIAAcascs@eff.org

Public Citizen

1600 20" Street, NW
Washington, DC 200009
Phone: (202) 588-7721

E-mail: litigation@citizen.org

b-d FeCT.o9r0 ~v=
TOTAL P.B5
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

IN RE: COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT
CASES WITH DOE DEFENDANTS : CIVIL ACTION
RELATED TO CIVIL ACTION : NO.
NUMBER 04-1239 :

STANDING ORDER

AND NOW, this 21 st day of January, 2005, for the purposes of consistency and in congruence
with the Court’s October 13, 2004 Order granting Plaintiffs Motion for Leave to Take Immediate

Discovery in Elektra Entertainment Group. Inc. v. Does 1-6, No. Civ.A.04-1241, [Doc. #14], as

amended by Order dated October 25, 2004 [Doc. #15], the Court issues the following Standing Order
to apply to all current and future copyright infringement actions having “Doe” defendants filed in the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania that are related to Civil Action Numbers 04-1239 and 04-1241 and
that have been or will be assigned for pre-trial administrative purposes to the undersigned. It is
hereby ORDERED as follows:
£ Plaintiffs may take immediate discovery on each respective Doe Defendant’s
Internet Service Provider (“ISP”) to obtain the identity of the Doe Defendant by
serving a Rule 45 subpoena that seeks information sufficient to identify the Doe
Defendant, including name, address, telephone number, e-mail address, and Media
Access Control addresses for each Defendant.
2. Plaintiffs may use the information obtained by this Rule 45 subpoena solely for the
purpose of protecting Plaintiffs’ rights under the Copyright Act.
.3 Plaintiffs shall attach the Court Directed Notice Regarding Issuance of Subpoena, a

copy of which is attached to this Order, to the aforementioned Rule 45 subpoena.
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The Rule 45 subpoena shall instruct the ISP to distribute a copy of said notice to
each Doe Defendant within seven days of service of the subpoena.

4. With respect to cable ISPs, this ruling further authorizes disclosure of information

pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 551(c)(2)(B).

5. Any future notices to any Defendant in these cases must be pre-approved by the

Court.

It is further ORDERED that the Clerk of Court shall place this Standing Order on the
dockets of all current and future copyright infringement actions having “Doe” defendants filed in
the Eastern District of Pennsylvania that have been or will be assigned for pre-trial administrative
purposes to the undersigned.

It is so ORDERED.

BY THE COURT:

/s/ Cynthia M. Rufe

CYNTHIA M. RUFE, J.



